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DESCRIPTION
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Huff Jones house is a two-story frame building with a two-story projecting wing and
single-story wing at the rear of the main block. The building faces south with the
gables of the main block facing north and the gable of the projecting wing facing west.
The wing is set back about six feet from the plane of the main block's facade. The
entire house is clapboarded, with the exception of the west end of the projecting wing,
and painted white. The roof is of ridged sheet metal painted green. Massive beams
regularly notched to receive joists support the floors and walls of both the main block
and the projecting wing. Whether the house is balloon-framed or of post-and-beam
construction has not been determined. The building rests on a rough-cut stone foundation
which replaced the original one when the house was raised in 1906.

A wide single-story veranda, which in 1906 replaced earlier porches, stretches the
length of the main facade, with its roof supported on Tuscan columns. Stylistically
the facade reads as a combination of vernacular styles combining the Greek Revival of
the main block and late Victorian elements in the projecting wing.

The main block is a vernacular interpretation of the Greek Revival style. Stylistic
elements are restrained and include the low-pitched roof, heavy cornice with returns,

and entablature in the eaves. The main elevation is the gable end and contains three
bays. The main floor contains two double-hung six-over-six windows and the main door-
way of the house; these are symmetrically spaced with the doorway on the west side.

The second floor contains only two windows, double-hung with large panes and symmetrically
arranged. Iconographic evidence suggests that this arrangement was original to the
building.

The east facade of the main block contains four windows symmdrically spaced. Of these,
three are identical to the windows in the second floor of the main facade; the fourth,
on the first floor to the rear of the block, is a modern picture window with three panes
side by side. The sympathetic handling of this alteration, which placed the picture
window in line with the others and used panes the same size as the other windows, makes
it a less—-than~obtrusive modification.

It is thought that the projecting wing, in some form, is original to the house. Icono-
graphic evidence confirms its existence in 1871, although at that time it may have been
only one story high. Moreover, property assessments between 1857 and 1870 suggest no
major improvements during the period. The stylistic embellishments to the west end of
the wing appear to date from later in the nineteenth century, suggesting that the wing
was modified sometime after 1870. Tax rolls for the period after 1870 survive only

at ten-year intervals, making precise dating of modifications to the wing impossible.

The main elevation of the projecting wing contains a pair of windows and a single window
on each level. The west end of the wing is stylistically interesting. It is formed as
a three-sided bay with the central west-facing surface twice as wide as the flanking
diagonally facing surfaces. Eaves in the gable end are ornately bracketed. A double
window on the second floor of the bay has an ornately carved wooden lintel. Surfaces

in the west end are varied with flush boards running diagonally and vertically.
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7. DESCRIPTION (continued)

To the rear of the main block is attached a single-story frame structure, perhaps

the house's original kitchen wing. Curiously, the roof of the wing is hipped at the
end which attaches to the main building, allowing the existence of a full-size window
in the second floor of the north facade of the main block. Although such a configura-
tion suggests that the wing was an addition to the main block, iconographic evidence
confirms that such a wing was there as early as 1871. Attached to the single-story
wing are two small entryway enclosures, one on the east side and one on the south.
These are thought to date from 1906. A modern patio/deck is attached to the west
side of the single-story wing. To the northwest of the building stands a shed which

was built in 1907.

The interior of the house has been remodeled a number of times. Although the plan
has been altered, the original staircase, many of the original moldings, and wooden
panels beneath the first floor front windows of the main block survive.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Huff Jones house is significant to the history of Oconto as the home of a pioneer

important to the settlement and industrial history of the area. Despite interior re-
modeling, the house retains the appearance it had when it was the home of Huff Jones;
its major exterior additions were made during that period.

To Huff Jones, his father David, and his brother Tarleton is credited the
first establishment of commercial lumbering in the Oconto area and lumber milling in
Oconto proper.1 Herein lies the bulk of Huff Jones' importance to Oconto's history:
the lumber industry which he helped establish was the reason for the settlement and
development of Oconto and remained the mainstay of the area's economy into the twentieth
century.

In 1835 Colonel David Jones, a War of 1812 veteran, brought his family to Green Bay

and established himself as a government trader at Fort Howard. In 1844, David and his
sons Huff and Tarleton jointly established a lumber camp on the Oconto River and a dam
and water-powered sawmill at the site which would become Oconto. A couple of years
previously George Lurwick had begun a dam at the site, but Lurwick's project was not
completed and the Jones Lumber Company became the first to undertake commercial lumber-
ing in Oconto. By 1849 the Jones company had augmented its operation with a second mill,
this one steam powered. The Joneses remained the predominant millers in Oconto for less
than a decade. In the 1850s their operation was eclipsed by larger more heavily capital-
ized concerns such as Holt and Balcom. David Jones died at Green Bay in 1856, and
Tarleton Jones left Wisconsin, retaining an interest in lumbering at Oconto while
establishing himself in business in Chicago. Huff, however, remained in Oconto and

was renowned throughout his life as a successful and noteworthy figure in the affairs

of the city. In addition to his business interest in lumbering, he was a founding
member of the Episcopal Church in Oconto, and he served as Oconto County Register of
Deeds from 1871 to 1893.

Around 1857 Huff Jones built this house in the "Huff Jones Addition," a block which he
had platted on the east side of town the year before. About this time other prominent
men of Oconto were also building houses in this neighborhood. Among them were Colonel
Uri Balcom, Joseph and George Hall, and Timothy Goodrich. Jones built his house in the
Greek Revival style but used stylistic decoration sparingly. Sometime late in the
century he modified the west wing of the house, adding Victorian decoration in the gable
end and perhaps enlarging what may have been an original single-story wing to two stories.

Today, the historical importance of Huff Jones is widely recognized in Oconto.
Recently old Jones family letters, photographs, and the original roll of electors of
the organizational meeting of Oconto County, which was held in June 1852 at "the

. house of David Jones'" in Oconto, were found in the attic of this house. The find has
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (continued)

created a suspicion that this was David Jones' home and the scene of the historic meet-
ing. This suspicion has yet to be confirmed and evidence contained in Oconto County tax
rolls and in the deeds pertaining to the property casts doubt on the interpretation,

The present owners of the house are proud of its history and anxious to preserve the
building.

1George E. Hall, A History of Oconto (Oconto, 1969), 43,

2Commemorative Biographical Record of the West Shore of Green Bay, Wisconsin (Chicago,
1896), 670-671.
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